HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 7, 2005
1:35 P. M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmttee neeting to
order at 1:35:56 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Holm

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative M ke Kelly
Representative Carl Mses

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Eric Croft
Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

ALSO PRESENT

M ke Pawl owski, Staff, Representative Kevin Myer; Barbara
Huf f - Tuckness, Di rector, Legislative and Governnental
Affairs, Teansters Local 959, Anchorage

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Representative Vic Kohring, Anchor age; Doug Giffin,
Director, Alcohol Beverage Control Board (ABC), Anchorage;
Kevin Hand, Arctic Power, Anchorage; Gail Phillips, Arctic
Power, Anchorage; Mke Navarre, Arctic Power, Kenai; Bob
Kl ein, Brown Jug Warehouse, Anchorage

SUMVARY

HB 15 An Act relating to seasonal alcoholic beverage
| i censes; and providing for an effective date.

CS HB 15 (L&) was reported out of Conmttee with
“individual recommendations” and with zero note #1
by the Departnent of Fish & Gane and fiscal note
#2 by the Departnment of Public Safety.

House Fi nance Committee 1 02/07/05 1:35 P. M



HB 32 An Act making a special appropriation for a grant
to Arctic Power to pronote the opening of the
Arctic National WIldlife Refuge for oil and gas
exploration and devel opnent; and providing for an
effective date.

HB 32 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

1: 36: 09 PM

#HB32
HOUSE BILL NO._ 32

An Act making a special appropriation for a grant to
Arctic Power to pronote the opening of the Arctic
National WIldlife Refuge for oil and gas exploration
and devel opnent; and providing for an effective date.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that it was not his intent to nove the
bill fromCommittee at this tine.

REPRESENTATI VE VI C KOHRI NG (TESTIFI ED VI A TELECONFERENCE) ,
SPONSOR, explained that HB 32 would provide a grant to
Arctic Power. He pointed out the current make-up of the
Arctic Power with Kevin Hand and previ ous House Speaker Gail
Phill'ips.

Representative Kohring stated that the Al aska National
Wldlife Refuge (ANWR) carries great inportance for the
state of Alaska with the potential to carry ten billion
barrels of recoverable oil. There could be additional oil
and gas al ong the way.

HB 32 appropriates $1.2 mllion dollars from the GCeneral
Fund to Arctic Power for use in pronoting the opening of the
Arctic National WIldlife Refuge (ANWR) by Congress for oil
and gas devel opnent. The legislation includes a GCeneral
Fund appropriation of $100 thousand dollars to the Native
village of Kaktovik for their comunity outreach effort to
gain support for the opening of the refuge.

Representative Kohring advised that wth declining oil
revenues, it is inperative that Al aska devel ops new fields.
ANVWR is the best prospect for future oil and gas devel opnent
in the State and Nati on.

The appropriation assists in reaching the goal of opening
that region. In addition, oil and gas exploration and
devel opnent of the coastal plain and adjacent |and could
result in mjor unforeseen discoveries that would help
reduce the Nation’s future need for inported oil, help
bal ance the trade deficit and inprove national security. He

House Fi nance Committee 2 02/07/05 1:35 P. M



added that Arctic Power wll use the funding to advocate the
i nportance of oil and gas production from Alaska’ s North
Sl ope. Arctic Power is a non-profit private group, which
has been in existence for 12 years and has received previous
State funding for |obbying efforts.

Represent ati ve Kohring urged passage of the bill

1: 40: 55 PM

GAIL PHI LIPS, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), ARCTIC PONER

ANCHORAGE, advised that for at |least the last ten years, the
Legislature, the Admnistration, the Al aska Congressional

del egation and the people of Alaska have worked |ong and
hard to get the need of opening ANVR to the forefront of
public debate. All  major devel opnent projects in Al aska
take an extra long period of tine. She reported that now
the time seens to be right to make ANWR happen. The U. S

Congressional delegation has requested that Arctic Power
focus their |obbying efforts during the next several nonths
on the U S. House of Representatives. Arctic Power has
strong support from the |eadership of the House. Openi ng
ANWR al so has strong support from the Secretary of Energy
and the Secretary of the Interior. Presi dent Bush's FYO7
budget contains anticipated inconme figures of $2.5 billion
dollars from ANVWR She reiterated strong federal support
for the project.

Ms. Phillips stressed that Arctic Power is requesting that
the House Finance Conmmttee follow in the footsteps of
previous | egislators in approving the proposal and providing

it in a tinmely manner. She stressed that the tineline for
the work is right now and the noney is needed to acconplish
this necessary work in Congress. She pointed out that

Representative Weyhrauch is in Washington D.C. at this tine,
| obbyi ng for ANVR

Ms. Phillips voiced her appreciation for being able to
testify on the appropriation request and reiterating the
request for early funding.

1:45: 27 PM

Representative Joule pointed out that there is not full
statewi de support for the |egislation. He asked if the
State was involved in a “stuffing” effort at this tinme. M.
Phil l'i ps acknow edged that there is trenendous effort in not
having the |egislation pass. She enphasi zed the need for
funding to stop those efforts. She stressed that the

proposal before the Commttee indicates that the “stuffing”
could make the difference in whether it happens; however,
the funds are not in hand to get things noving. She
cautioned that it would take two to three nonths of advocacy
work to position the State for a favorable vote.

House Fi nance Committee 3 02/07/05 1:35 P. M



Co- Chair Meyer asked when Arctic Power anticipates the U S
Congress to discuss ANVMR concerns. M. Philips thought that
woul d be in May 2005.

Co- Chair Chenault inquired about discussions occurring with
the U S. Congressional delegation and the coordination of
those efforts. Ms. Phillips advised that she had net with
the Al aska delegation before session started. The U. S
Congr essi onal del egation recommended that Arctic Power focus
their efforts in the U S. House of Representatives and the
states with new congressnen.

Representative Kelly noted that he had not heard about the
$100 thousand dollar contribution to Kaktovik, asking if it
was justified. Ms. Philips replied that it was definitely
justified; the funding would help them prepare for the
i nflux of business comng into that small community.

1: 50: 49 PM

KEVIN HAND, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), ARCTIC PONER
ANCHORAGE, provided details on the Kaktovik budget. He
noted that historically, the $100 thousand dollars was split
and $50 thousand dollars would go to the Native village of
Kakt ovi k and the remaining anmunt would go to the Gty of

Kaktovi k. In the past, the noney was used for advocacy and
education efforts and to help defer other expenses they
i ncur. Kaktovik is the “back yard” of the area to be
devel oped.

Representative Kelly understood that the noney was to be
used as a support for the | obbying. M. Hand agreed that
was correct.

Representative Joule commented that he recently participated
in the economc sunmt with the Governor and that comunity.

He noted that the community of Kaktovik is “punped”. The
funding will help offset expenses, as nore business is
funneling into that small community. He enphasized that al

entities are working cooperatively. Representative Joule

added that he would provide an anendnent to address sone
concerns.

Ms. Philips interjected that U S. Secretary Norton has
schedul ed a major tour of the area for March 2005.

Vice-Chair Stoltze indicated that the village of Kaktovik is
not asking too nmuch for the value and credibility that they
are bringing to the table. Such actions reflect how
inportant they are to the |obbying effort; the village is
currently spending beyond their resources and that the $100
t housand dol l ar request is m nimum

House Fi nance Committee 4 02/07/05 1:35 P. M



1: 55:56 PM

M KE NAVARRE, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), EXECUTI VE
BOARD, ARCTI C PONER, KENAI, stressed that the gas line wll
provi de opportunity for the State of Alaska. He stated that
the State has done an excellent job in educating people
nationally, pointing out that the effort is now at a
critical point. He acknow edged the forces opposing
devel opment for ANWR commenting on the msrepresentation
occurring in that circle.

Arctic Power has always worked closely wth the US.
Congressi onal del egati on. He encouraged State |egislators
to “stay the course” this year, believing that it wll pass
national | y. He stressed that the appropriation is an
investnment for the future of Al aska. He urged that the
| egi sl ati on pass as soon as possible as it carries such a
hi gh potential. M. Navarre offered to answer questions of
the Commttee.

Representative Hawker pointed out that this year Arctic
Power is focusing their efforts in the US. House of
Represent ati ves. He asked about Congressman Nussle, Chair
of the U S. Budget Committee. Ms. Phillips responded that
he is getting a lot of pressure from environnentalist and
constituents from his State but she believed that he
ultimately would not be the one to control the issue. She
did not know his thoughts on the issue at this tine.

M. Navarre interjected that the reason that there is so
much focus on the House Finance Committee, it to keep it out
of the U S. budget reconciliation process as the opposition
knows that there currently is not l|likely 60-votes in the
U S House to pass ANWR as a separate bill. On the U S
Senate side, Alaska has Senator Ted Stevens, who is quite
capable of handling it there.

KEVIN HAND, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), ARCTIC POVER,
ANCHORAGE, echoed statenments nmade by Ms. Phillips and M.
Navarr e. He reiterated that there are many environnental
groups | obbying against passage of ANWR |egislation.
However, he pointed out that there is one primry group
advocating for ANWR in Washington D.C, Arctic Power. He
urged funding for the | egislation.

BARBARA HUFF- TUCKNESS, DI RECTOR, LEG SLATI VE AND
GOVERNMVENTAL AFFAI RS, TEAMSTERS UNI ON LOCAL 959, ANCHORACE,
acknowl edged for the record that the Teansters Union does
support the legislation and Arctic Power. She added that
she was a nenber of the Arctic Power Board.

Ms. Huff-Tuckness pointed out that Arctic Power is not a

State funded entity and wthout the passage of the
| egislation, it would be difficult to “push” for the opening

House Fi nance Committee 5 02/07/05 1:35 P. M



of ANWR Teansters Union Local 959 advocate for the
| egislation, as dollars resulting from opening ANV w ||
cone to the State and are inportant for working people.

Ms. Huff-Tuckness acknow edged that sone of the political
pressures over the years have slowed down the process. She
believed that the concern is now tinely and that there has
been nmuch di scussion, debate and education over the issue.
Movi ng through the budget process hel ps that concern, which
is a positive process. She hoped that it would succeed this
year, as it wll benefit every working person statew de.

2: 07: 05 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze noted criticismthat sonme of the industry
pl ayers have pulled out. He did not see that as a problem
as sonme of their interests are not the sanme as that of the
State. Ms. Huff-Tuckness commented on behalf of the
Teansters, noting that their support is on the table for any
resource devel opnent done in the State provided it is done
in a safe manner. The success story is in Prudhoe Bay. For
the Teansters Union, it 1is about jobs, local hire and
bri ngi ng econom c devel opnent to the State of Al aska. She
reiterated support for any inportant econom c devel opnent
opening up in Alaska. Ms. Huff-Tuckness reiterated that
there is an opportunity to nove forward to develop the
resources; the Teansters see it as a training opportunity
for construction and maintenance workers. The Teansters
Union will continue to fight for those efforts.

Vice-Chair Stoltze stated that he wanted organi zed | abor’s
commtnent for the project on the record.

Representative Kelly comrented that in the past, there had
been fundi ng assi stance and nmatch nonies and asked how that
woul d affect the current $1.3 mllion dollar request. M.
Hand advised that the private dollars that Arctic Power
brings in would work in concert with public noney. He noted
that the total budget was a little nore than $3 million
dol | ars. Arctic Power has been successful raising private
noney, which denonstrates the newfound optimsm resulting

since the presidential election. The focus now is on
Washi ngton D.C. and that 45% of Arctic Power’s total budget
will be utilized for that effort. M. Hand advised that

currently, Congressnman Young is in Seattle, attenpting to
educate that State regarding the advantages of the project.

HB 32 was HELD in Committee for further consideration.

2:13: 27 PM

#HB15
HOUSE BI LL NO. 15

House Fi nance Committee 6 02/07/05 1:35 P. M



An  Act relating to seasonal al coholic beverage
| i censes; and providing for an effective date.

M KE PAW.OWBKI, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE KEVI N MEYER, provided
an overvi ew of HB 15. He noted that there are two distinct
sections to the bill

The primary purpose of the bill is to create an alcoholic
beverage license for outdoor recreation | odges. He noted
that at present tinme, |odge owners provide alcoholic

beverages to their guests by either:

* Encouraging guests to bring their own, or

* Providing alcoholic beverages free of charge during
meal s, or

« Selling alcoholic beverages illegally.

That creates a difficult situation for |odge owners and the
whol esal e or package store seller to that | odge.

M. Pawl owski continued, under the current system a |odge
wishing to sell and provide alcoholic beverages to their
guests nust obtain both an al cohol dispensary license and a
package store license, since licenses are limted based on
popul ati on, nmany | odge owners cannot obtain a |icense even
if they wanted to. HB 15 would create a new alcoholic
beverage |icense for outdoor recreation | odges.

He continued, HB 15 would Iimt the |license by:

 Allowing a licensee to serve only their overnight
guests and off-duty-staff, or

* Expressly stating that the license my not be
transferred.

Li censes woul d cost $1,250 for two years, as opposed to the
current $4,000 cost. Under AS 04.11.680, a |icensee may
obtain a “seasonal” half-price license. He pointed out that
the fiscal note is positive, assumng very few | odges wll
actually get the |icense.

M. Pawl owski added that the second part of the bill is
found in Section 3, an anendnent offered by Representative
Rokeberg in the House Labor and Comrerce Committee, which
exenpt licenses issued under the old public convenience
statute from the current prohibition on transfers. The
action would allow the last existing |license issued under
the fornmer statute to be transferred wth the sane
limtations on a transfer found in the current statute.

House Fi nance Committee 7 02/07/05 1:35 P. M



The Al cohol Beverage Control (ABC) Board testified in the
House Labor and Commerce Commttee that they supported the
anendnent and it passed w thout objection.

M. Paw owski summarized that HB 15 provides an opportunity
for | odge owners to devel op another revenue streamfor their
busi ness, while providing a | egal service to the guests.

2:19: 50 PM

Representative Joule referenced Section 4. He asked how
that |anguage would inpact a comunity that has the |oca

opti on. M. Paw owski advised that the |ocal option under
Chapter 4 always supercedes the licensing in the statutes.

DOUG GRIFFIN, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), DI RECTOR
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE CONTROL (ABC) BOARD, ANCHORAGE, expl ai ned
that the ABC Board has known that sonme | odges operating in

the State have been doing it illegally, noting that it has
been difficult to police. Licensing the entity wll be an
i nprovenent and the Board | ooks forward to working with that
new type of [|icense. There are nore and nore | odges
springing up every year and there needs to be proper
training for staff. He offered to answer questions of the
Commi ttee.

M. Giffin acknowl edged that the fiscal inpact was

difficult to determ ne, as the Board had to nmake assunptions
regardi ng how many | odges there are and how nany woul d want
to participate in the program The ABC Board continues to
believe that the legislation would generate inconme for the
St at e.

Vice-Chair Stoltze commented that |iquor |icenses go through
a local review process and assuned that would happen in the
unorgani zed areas also. M. Giffin explained that would be
difficult to determne. There are sone |lodges in Vice Chair
Stoltze's area that are renote that could qualify. The ABC
Board continues to see licenses going through the |oca

review process as part of their renewal package. He
suspected that nost would be in the unorgani zed boroughs.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if a second-class borough had the
authority to regulate alcohol |icenses. M. Giffin
responded that there is a role for local governnents to
pl ace. In the Mat-Su Borough, the Assenbly has chosen a
uni que force of action for delegating that responsibility to
their planning departnent. In nost cases, every two years,
every license cones before the | ocal Assenbly.

Vice-Chair Stoltze commented that he was not suggesting that

the local process is not flawed and/or political. He did
not believe that nost of the |odges wanted to get involved
in outside sales. He asked if there was sone |evel of

House Fi nance Committee 8 02/07/05 1:35 P. M



public interest. M. Giffin explained that there are a
nunber of different processes that nust be passed through
In an wunorganized area, Title 4, there is a petition
requi renent to show support for the local |icense in the
surroundi ng areas. There are requirenents that a petition
process be followed before the |icense can be issued.

Vice-Chair Stoltze inquired if the structures would have to
be permanent to qualify. M. Giffin replied that had not
been defined but there would be discretion regardi ng each of
t he circunstances. He did not think it was essential and
that each would have to neet certain criteria.

Vice-Chair Stoltze speculated that this would not be a
noneynmaker for the State except perhaps through the fees
pai d.

2:29:46 PM

Co-Chair Meyer explained that he had brought the bil
forward from recomendations received by the Brown Jug

War ehouse. They had concerns that sone of |odges were
selling alcohol without a license. Co-Chair Myer believed
that if a levy were charged for the alcohol, it would

provi de new revenue for the State. He understood that the
adm ni stration was handl ed through the Departnent of Public
Safety, State Troopers. Co-Chair Meyer envisioned that they
woul d handl e the enforcenent al so.

Co-Chair Meyer pointed out that there has been concern that
“bars” would be set up in sone renote areas. In order to be
served, a guest would be required to spend at |east one
ni ght. He inquired if the ABC Board was confortable with
the | anguage as currently witten. M. Giffin replied that
they were confortable with that | anguage.

Co- Chair Meyer asked about the anmendnent adopted by the
House Labor and Comrerce Commttee. M. Giffin stated that
it was reviewed and that it would not present any problens
for |icensing.

In response to a request by Co-Chair Myer, M. Giffin
di scussed the effect of the Rokeberg amendnent. He advi sed
that there currently exists a public convenience Iicense;
these licenses are not transferable because they are beyond
t he quota. He addressed the anomaly of the law and the
hi story of transferring.

Co-Chair Meyer questioned if a |odge could serve alcohol to
guests and then add the price to their room rate. \V/ g
Giffin replied they could not; it would be contrary to
Title 4.

House Fi nance Committee 9 02/07/05 1:35 P. M



Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if it would be a non-transferable
| i cense. M. Giffin replied that there is a limtation
making it non-transferable. There was concern expressed if
a | odge were sold, the new owner then has to apply for a new
| i cense.

Representative Hawker inquired how the drafters determ ned
the $1,250 dollar anount. M. Paw owski replied that the

detail in determning that figure was arrived at by | ooking
at the cost of a full beverage-dispensing license and then
dividing it. It's assuned that would be a reasonable |eve

a small business could afford.

Representative Hawker inquired about the drop in fee for
seasonal pl aces. M. Pawl owski discussed that seasona
| i censi ng was addressed in AS 04.11.680.

2:40: 21 PM

BOB KLEI N, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), BROWN JUG
WAREHOUSE, ANCHORAGE, explained that he is currently wearing
three hats as the Operations Manager for Brown Jug, Chairman
of the Alaska Cabaret Hot el and Rest aur ant Ret ai |

Associ ation (CHARR) CGovernnent Affairs Commttee and al ummi

of the ABC Board. He provided background history of the
bill. He explained how his business deals with custoners in
Bush Al aska who have been involved in illegal alcoho

activities. M. Kl ein discussed the benefits and privil eges
related to the legislation and nentioned that there have
been no objections regarding non-transferability. He stated
that it is a good bill as it closes the gap and answers
statew de need for al cohol I|icensing.

Representative Foster MOVED to report CS HB 15 (L&C) out of
Committee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CS HB 15 (L&) was reported out of Conmttee wth
“individual recommendations and with zero note #1 by the
Department of Fish & Gane and fiscal note #2 by the
Department of Public Safety.

#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 2:45 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 10 02/07/05 1:35 P. M



